
1 

POQUOSON CITY SCHOOL BOARD MEETING 

NOVEMBER 19, 2024 – 6:00 p.m. 

CITY OF POQUOSON COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

AGENDA 

I. CALL TO ORDER – Chair 

II. PLEDGE TO THE FLAG, MOMENT OF SILENCE, AND INSPIRATIONAL READING
AJ Lumagui, Board Student Representative

III. ADDITIONS AND/OR MODIFICATIONS TO THE AGENDA

IV. RECOGNITIONS - Kelly Purdie, Professional Learning & Communications Administrator

A. Poquoson High School Senior of the Month – Thatcher Faciszewski

V. PRESENTATIONS AND REPORTS

A. Instruction Update – Ashley Ide, Assistant Superintendent for Instruction 

B. Finance Update – Tracy Spence, Executive Director of Finance 

C. Operations Update – Andrew Roberts, Assistant Superintendent for Operations 

VI. PUBLIC COMMENT

VII. CONSENT AGENDA

A. Approval of Financial Reports (Enclosed) 

B. Authorization to Change Appropriation and to Accept and Expend Funds in Accordance 

with Attached Request (Enclosed) 

C. Approval of Personnel Action (Enclosed) 

D. Approval of Minutes for October’s Regular Meeting (Enclosed) 

VIII. OTHER MATTERS FOR CONSIDERATION

A. Consideration of recommendation to amend 2024-2025 budget based on increase in state 

funding. (Reading File Enclosed) 

B. Consideration to revise Student Code of Conduct to update electronic device and cell 

phone policy, align with VDOE guidelines and compliant with Governor's Executive 

Order 33, "Cell Phone-Free Education." (Reading File Enclosed) 

C. Consideration of Approval of Superintendent’s Request to City Council for Use of 

Carryover Funds (Reading File Enclosed) 

D. School Nutrition Policy update (Reading File Enclosed) 

IX. COMMUNICATIONS AND/OR OTHER MATTERS BY SCHOOL BOARD AND/OR

SUPERINTENDENT

X. MATERIAL FOR BOARD REVIEW 

XI. SPECIAL CALL FOR CLOSED SESSION (Agenda Attached)– Chair

XII. ADJOURNMENT



XI.  Special Call for Closed Session 

 

 

 

 

POQUOSON CITY SCHOOL BOARD 

CLOSED SESSION 

NOVEMBER 19, 2024 – TO FOLLOW REGULAR MEETING 

CITY OF POQUOSON COUNCIL CHAMBERS CONFERENCE ROOM 

 

 

 

AGENDA 

 

 

I. Special Call for Closed Session – Chair 

A. Poquoson City Public Schools’ School Board will meet in closed session pursuant 

to the Scholastic Exemption of Section 2.2-3711(A)(1) of the Virginia Freedom of 

Information for consideration of personnel matters. 

 

 

 



1,429,275 

2,861,958 

4,872,072 

7,256,641 

455,845 

1,922,575 

4,058,143 

6,436,237 

 -

 5,000,000

 10,000,000

 15,000,000

 20,000,000

 25,000,000

 30,000,000

 35,000,000

July August September October November December January February March April May June

2024 - 2025 
Expenditures and Revenue

Year-To-Date

Budget

Revenue

Expenditures



POQUOSON CITY PUBLIC SCHOOLS

EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT REPORT

FOR MONTH ENDING October 2024

OUTSTANDING EXPENDITURES EXPENDITURES AVAILABLE PERCENT
APPROPRIATIONS ENCUMBRANCES MONTH TO DATE YEAR TO DATE BALANCE USED

ELEMENTARY

HOMEBOUND INSTRUCTION $4,458.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $4,458.00 0%

SECONDARY  

HOMEBOUND INSTRUCTION $4,333.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $4,333.00 0%

TOTAL FOR

POQUOSON PRIMARY $4,338,489.00 $1,082.30 $343,301.09 $753,558.34 $3,583,848.36 17%
 

TOTAL FOR  

POQUOSON ELEMENTARY $4,159,027.00 $630.73 $330,415.34 $759,871.47 $3,398,524.80 18%

TOTAL FOR  

POQUOSON MIDDLE $4,816,598.00 $0.00 $373,624.34 $825,159.54 $3,991,438.46 17%
 

TOTAL FOR  

POQUOSON HIGH $7,748,206.00 $4,328.10 $566,070.01 $1,720,280.02 $6,023,597.88 22%

TOTAL FOR  

ELEM & SECOND PROGRAMS $1,203,755.53 $161.47 $70,805.95 $198,849.57 $1,004,744.49 17%
 

TOTAL FOR  

ADMINISTRATION $7,793,894.85 $29,058.50 $637,150.16 $1,963,003.67 $5,801,832.68 26%
.  

TOTAL FOR GRANTS:   

POSITIVE BEHAVIORIAL

INTERVENTION AND SUPPORT $2,916.17 $0.00 $4,753.25 $9,184.39 ($6,268.22) 0%

 TITLE I   NCLB $155,072.59 $0.00 $24,520.35 $35,287.84 $119,784.75 23%

 CARL PERKINS $25,901.98 $241.80 $0.00 $263.25 $25,396.93 2%

 VI-B $788,113.12 $0.00 $20,264.40 $61,828.03 $726,285.09 8%
 

 TITLE II $42,164.81 $0.00 $0.00 $6,255.81 $35,909.00 15%

TITLE IV $19,500.72 $0.00 $0.00 $430.77 $19,069.95 2%

TITLE III $1,884.81 $0.00 $299.00 $299.00 $1,585.81 0%

IMPACT AID $230,594.10 $0.00 $4,099.38 $4,099.38 $226,494.72 2%

PRESCHOOL $22,394.04 $61.25 $2,939.52 $5,494.16 $16,838.63 25%
 

K-5 Literacy $266,288.08 $0.00 $7,992.85 $34,286.20 $232,001.88 13%

CARES-ESSER II $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0%

CARES-ESSER III $58,085.22 $0.00 ($8,142.13) $58,085.22 $0.00 0%

CARES-ESSER III Set Aside $1,288.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,288.00 0%

CSLFRF - PPS HVAC Replacement $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0%

TOTAL $31,682,965.02 $35,564.15 $2,378,093.51 $6,436,236.66 $25,211,164.21 20%

 







































Authorization to Accept and Expend Additional Revenues 
The following is a list of additional revenues and corresponding additional expenditures to the 2024-2025 
Operating Budget requiring authorization from the Board to accept and expend.  Please note that total revenue 
equals total expenditures. 
 
           Revenue Expenditures 

1. Additional CTE State Funding: 
     Revenue for CTE   #1-2-2403340    $10,015.60 
     Expenditure for CTE   #1-100-30-010-3-61100-0000    $10,015.60 
 
 

2. Additional Title I Federal Funding: 
     Revenue for Title I   #1-3-84.01    $21,920.95 

     Purchase Services   #1-201-20-150-1-61100-3000    $2,325.00 
     Materials and Supplies  #1-201-20-150-1-61100-6000    $19,595.95 
 

3. Budget Adjustments: 
    All In VA Salaries & Benefits  #1-100-90-000-1-61310-0000    -$187,745.50 
    All in VA Operating Expenses  #1-100-90-000-1-61310-0000      $187,745.50 

   
 
 

     
 

The following is a list of donations to Poquoson City Public Schools Activity Accounts: 

 

Poquoson High School 
 A donation from Chiri’s Latin Kitchen for dinner for the Cheerleading Team     $258.79 
 
 A donation from Mark and Denise Tysinger to the Poquoson Football Team to be used for team dinners $250.00 
 
 A donation from Beth Inge to be used as needed for the PHS Veterans Project                  $50.00 
  
 A donation from Marlene Welsh to the Poquoson Football Team to be used for team dinners    $50.00 

 
A donation from the Poquoson Education Foundation for teacher grants                  $1,290.00 
 
A donation from Los Compadres for dinner for the Cheerleading Team     $200.00 
 
A donation from the Exchange Club of Poquoson to the Poquoson Excel Club to be used as needed  $245.00 
 
A donation from the City of Poquoson to the Poquoson Band for their Seafood Festival performance  
to be used as needed           $200.00 
 

Poquoson Middle School 
 A donation from the Poquoson Education Foundation for teacher grants                  $1,037.00 
 
Poquoson Elementary School  
 A $1.00 donation from multiple families to be put towards the Music Recorder Supplies fund    $8.00 
 
Poquoson Primary School 
 A donation from Kroger Community Rewards to be used for classroom enrichment    $222.51 



Personnel Action

November 19, 2024

Name Position Work Location

Recommendation(s) 2024-25 SY

Megan Baker Hernandez Paraprofessional PPS

Madison Davis Paraprofessional PES

Jessica Taylor Nurse PPS

Erna Vasquez Cafeteria Monitor PPS

Resignation(s) Current

Alyson Weems Paraprofessional PMS

Lynn Neenan School Counselor PHS

Candice Knowlton Vestibule Clerk PPS

Davis Cartwright Maintenance Supervisor PCPS

Recommendation(s)-Substitutes

Jentri Batton Instructional PCPS

Candice Knowlton Instructional PCPS

Beth Ann Wilson Instructional PCPS

Wendy Wright Instructional PCPS

Recommendation(s)-Supplements

Leave of Absence

Jennifer Foglia Nurse PMS



1 
 

 
POQUOSON CITY SCHOOL BOARD MEETING 

October 15, 2024– 6:00 p.m. 
CITY OF POQUOSON COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

 
MEETING MINUTES 

 
In attendance: 
 

Shannon Martin, Chair Timothy Goodale Arty Tillett, Superintendent 
Christopher Burbage, Vice 
Chair 

Kristen Jones Andrew Roberts, Asst. 
Superintendent 

Michael DuBose J. Chris Maxwell Ashley Ide, Deputy Clerk 
 AJ Lumagui, Student 

Representative 
Carol M. Carroll, Clerk 

 
Absent: Melissa Bartlett 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER  

 
The meeting was called to order by Shannon Martin, Chair, at 6:00 p.m. 

 
II. PLEDGE TO THE FLAG, MOMENT OF SILENCE, AND INSPIRATIONAL 

READING  
 

AJ Lumagui, Board Student Representative, led the meeting with the pledge of allegiance, a 
moment of silence and an inspirational reading from Virginia native Edgar Allan Poe. 
             
III. ADDITIONS AND/OR MODIFICATIONS TO THE AGENDA 

 
No additions or modifications were made to the agenda.  
 
IV. RECOGNITIONS  

 
A.   Poquoson High School Senior of the Month – Shelby Moore 

 
Senior of the month is organized by the Poquoson Exchange Club.  Kelly Purdie presented 
Shelby Moore with a certificate after a brief narrative about her accomplishments at PCPS High 
School.  

 
No other recognitions. 

  
V. PRESENTATIONS AND REPORTS 
 
A. Instructional Update – Ashley Ide, Assistant Superintendent for Instruction and Support 
Services presented the Instructional Update which included:  



2 
 

 
• PPS participated in hands on math, book fair, Wednesday’s Word with Mrs. Green 
• PES fourth graders went to the outdoor classroom with a master gardener. 
• PMS eight graders using engineering design process to build solar cars; performance arts 

students creating rhythmic compositions, lighting cues and performance. 
• PHS celebrated homecoming week with spirit days, hallway decorations, pep rally, 

parade, football game. 
• Community quilt project participants have begun submitting their projects in this 

international project. 
• Evolution show choir had a meet and greet with the cast of the latest Busch Gardens 

show. 
• Update on advanced course work  
• VPI-Virginia Preschool Initiative 
• IPOP program - Inclusive Placement Opportunities for Preschoolers or Integrated 

Poquoson Outreach Preschool 
• Inclusion Benefits noted.  
 
No questions from the Board 

 
B. Operations Update – Andrew Roberts, Assistant Superintendent for Operations 
presented the operations update including: 

 
• Safety –  

o PCPS Safety Committee - forming committee before the next board meeting 
o Metal Weapons Detector costs 
o Visitor Management System Centegix 
o Badge Alert System 
o Raptor – Visitor Management System – current system at PCPS 
o Allergen Program – Aramark 

• Transportation – 
o Bus purchase – 77 passenger 
o Cost of electric buses 
o Choice to stay with diesel buses due to lower costs. 
o Bus stop arm cameras 
o Tracker Software 
o Bus Safety Week 
o Continued need for bus drivers, subs and aids. 

• Cellphone Committee 
o VDOE guidance document 
o Draft policy expected by the November board meeting. 
o Hope to implement by January 1 

• Regional Calendar Committee 
o Earlier school start date was discussed. 

 
Chair Martin asked about the earlier start date. 
Mr. Roberts stated it would be a gradual move to a new start date. Only in discussion at this time. 



3 
 

Mr. Tillett explained the calendar law that does not allow for a lot of room to start earlier. There 
is a start and end date requirement. 
Ms. Jones confirmed the school year will still be 180 days. 
Mr. Maxwell asked how many metal detectors would be needed per school. 
Mr. Roberts stated two units in front of the school and one in the back. 
Mr. Maxwell asked if they would be used only during school days or also during extracurricular 
activities.   
Mr. Roberts stated the detectors are mobile units and can be taken to any school or any event. 
Mr. Tillett stated the detectors can detect harmful items versus non-harmful items such as 
everyday items, i.e. keys. 
Mr. Maxwell asked if any additional costs are anticipated or changing of infrastructure of the 
building. 
Mr. Roberts stated the detectors are plug and play. 
 
C. Finance Update Financial Update – Tracy Spence, Executive Director of Finance 
presented the financial update including:  
 

• Impact Aid Program – Federal Funding Sources.  
• The survey must be completed via Parent Square by October 31, 2024 
• Significant revenue Impact on PCPS 

 
Fiscal year budget dates 
Input for Fiscal Year 2026 Budget 
 
Mr. Maxwell asked about the form’s availability. 
Ms. Spence stated the forms are on Parent Square or from the schools. 

  
VI.       PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
No public comment was heard at today’s meeting. 

 
VII.    CONSENT AGENDA 
 

A. Approval of Financial Reports (Enclosed) 
B. Authorization to Change Appropriation and to Accept and Expend Funds in 

Accordance with Attached Request (Enclosed) 
C. Approval of Personnel Action (Enclosed) 
D. Approval of Minutes for September’s Regular Meeting (Enclosed) 
E. Approval to Authorize the Superintendent to Sign a Contract for Custodial Services 

with Service Master Commercial Services for the 2024-2025 School Year (Reading 
File Enclosed) 

 
A motion was made by Mr. DuBose to pull item VII. C. from the consent agenda and voted on 
separately. 
 



4 
 

Chair Martin directed the record to remove item VII.C from the Consent Agenda and move to 
other matters for consideration. 
 
Motion was made by Mr. DuBose and seconded by Vice Chair Burbage to vote on only Consent 
Agenda items, A, B, D and E.   
 

• Vice Chair Burbage – Aye 
• Mr. DuBose – Aye 
• Dr. Goodale – Aye 
• Ms. Jones – Aye 
• Mr. Maxwell – Aye 
• Chair Martin - Aye 

 
The Consent Agenda items A, B, D and E was approved by a vote of 6 to 0.  Motion passed. 
 
VIII.    OTHER MATTERS FOR CONSIDERATION             

A. Consideration of Approval of Proclamation for Bus Safety Week (Enclosed) 
 
Motion was made by Vice Chair Burbage and seconded by Ms. Jones to approve the 
Proclamation for Bus Safety Week. 
 

• Vice Chair Burbage – Aye 
• Mr. DuBose – Aye 
• Dr. Goodale – Aye 
• Ms. Jones – Aye 
• Mr. Maxwell – Aye 
• Chair Martin - Aye 

 
The Proclamation for Bus Safety Week was approved by a vote of 6 to 0.  Motion passed. 
 
Addition of the approval of personnel action. Motion by Vice Chair Burbage and Seconded by 
Mr. Maxwell. 
 

• Vice Chair Burbage – Aye 
• Mr. DuBose – Abstention related to a family member being on part of the personnel 

actions. 
• Dr. Goodale – Aye 
• Ms. Jones – Aye 
• Mr. Maxwell – Aye 
• Chair Martin - Aye 

 
Vote passes 5 to 0. 
 
IX.   COMMUNICATIONS AND/OR OTHER MATTERS BY SCHOOL BOARD 

AND/OR SUPERINTENDENT 



5 
 

 
AJ Lumagui provided his report on the PCPS schools. 
 
Mr. Maxwell offered his congratulations to the senior of the month.  Thank you to the book fair 
organizers and homecoming week organizers.  Looking forward to the safety committee meeting. 
 
Mr. Goodale echoes congratulations to Shelby Moore. Had the opportunity to talk to other 
students in other states about the phone policy. He stated the students he spoke to want to the 
schools to meet them halfway and walk the walk. Kids want to check grades on PowerSchool. 
Lots of opportunities to think about the policy and be unplugged. Looking forward to trying to 
do it.  
 
Ms. Jones echoes the sentiments of the others.  Thank you to the exchange club for sponsoring 
the Student of the Month Program and congratulations to Shelby.  Thank you to PHS 
administration and staff for the homecoming week and bringing the fun to the schools. 
 
Mr. DuBose wants to echo other comments.  PEF grants to the schools and PEF does a great job 
of giving back to our schools.  Run for the Bulls participation helps PEF. 
 
Dr. Burbage would like to reiterate congratulations to Shelby Moore.  Slowly working through 
the schools to meet about special ed needs.   
 
Chair Martin echoes the sentiments of the board.  Noted that Shelby has a very impressive 
resume.  Thanks to the PHS administration, and the school board office for the support for 
homecoming. Thank you to the middle school for the relentless communication. Shout out to the 
IPOP team and thank them for what they do to be successful.  
 
Mr. Tillett thanks the staff for the first quarter of the year.  Thanks to the 305 dedicated and 
committed staff members.    
 
X.    MATERIAL FOR BOARD REVIEW 
 
There was no additional material for Board review. 
 
XI. SPECIAL CALL FOR CLOSED SESSION (Agenda Attached)– Shannon Martin, 

Chair  
 
Vice Chair Burbage made a motion for a special call for a closed session.  Seconded by Mr. 
DuBose.   
 
Vice Chair Burgage read into the record the Code of Virginia related to the closed session 
regarding personnel. Seconded by Mr. DuBose. 
 

• Vice Chair Burbage – Aye 
• Mr. DuBose – Aye 
• Dr. Goodale – Aye 



6 
 

• Ms. Jones – Aye 
• Mr. Maxwell – Aye 
• Chair Martin – Aye 

 
Vote passes 6-0. 
 
The board convened in a closed session for consideration of: 
 A. Personnel matters. 
 
XII. ADJOURNMENT 
 
A Motion was made by Vice Chair Burbage and seconded by Dr. Goodale to move back into 
open session. 
 

• Vice Chair Burbage – Aye 
• Mr. DuBose – Aye 
• Dr. Goodale – Aye 
• Ms. Jones – Aye 
• Mr. Maxwell – Aye 
• Chair Martin – Aye 

 
Motion passed 6-0. 
 
There being no further business, Chair Martin adjourned the meeting at 7:46 p.m. 

 
 
 
Chair                  Carol M. Carroll, Clerk of the Board 
 
 
Date 
 



Poquoson City School Board 
Reading File Item Brief 

 
Reading File Item:  VIII-A  
 
Meeting Date:  November 19, 2024 
 
Subject:  Motion to approve a one-time bonus payment for current, full-time and part-time 
employees and long term substitutes and reduce FY25 City of Poquoson appropriation. 
 
Background: 
The Governor had not signed the 2024-2026 State Biennial Budget at the time the School Board 
approved its FY25 budget. Upon the signing of the State Budget in May, the School’s projected 
FY25 State revenues increased by $560,181, based on 2038 ADM (Average Daily Membership). 
Had the Schools been aware of the increased State revenue at the time of the FY25 budget 
approval, the City’s appropriation request may have been reduced by $560,181. 
 
Discussion: 
PCPS would like to utilize the additional State funding of $560,181 in the following manner: 

1. Reduction of City Appropriation: 
o Reduce the FY25 City of Poquoson appropriation by $280,090. 

2. Bonus Distribution: 
o Provide one-time bonuses to all full and part-time employees: 

 $1,000 for full-time employees (including full-time long-term substitutes 
contracted to work the entire school year). 

 $500 for part-time employees (including part-time long-term substitutes 
contracted to work the entire school year). 

o The remaining additional State funding of $280,091 will offset the total projected 
bonus cost of $357,279. 

o To cover the remaining cost, PCPS requests to use $77,188 from current FY25 
vacancy savings. 

3. Eligibility for Bonus: 
o Only current full-time and part-time employees, as well as long-term substitutes 

working the entire school year as of November 15, 2024, are eligible for the bonus. 
o Hourly, daily substitutes, and supplemental employees will not be eligible. 

4. Issuance of Bonus: 
o The one-time bonus payment will be issued on December 10, 2024. 

 
Recommendation: 
Approve the following actions: 

1. The one-time bonus payment for current full-time and part-time employees and long-term 
substitutes utilizing additional State funding and vacancy savings. 

2. The reduction of the FY25 City of Poquoson appropriation by $280,090 to reflect the 
increased State revenue. 

 
 
References:  School Board Policy 5-7.1 
 



READING FILE - ELECTRONIC DEVICE CELL PHONE POLICY



Poquoson City School Board 
Reading File Item Brief 

Reading File Item: VIII.B 

Meeting Date:  November 19, 2024 

Subject: Request for approval to update our Student Code of Conduct regarding the 
Electronic Device/Cell Phone policy, aligning with VDOE guidelines to comply with the 
Governor’s Executive Order 33, “Cell Phone-Free Education.”  

Background 
On July 9, 2024, Governor Glenn Youngkin issued Executive Order 33, mandating all 
Virginia public schools to establish a Cell Phone-Free educational environment. In 
response, the Virginia Department of Education (VDOE) was tasked with providing 
guidance to ensure school divisions comply with this order and to clarify the essential 
elements of a Cell Phone-Free Education policy. Following the release of VDOE’s 
guidance document, our Cell Phone Committee at Poquoson City Public Schools - which 
includes parents, students, staff, and administrators – developed a draft policy to 
recommend for School Board approval ahead of the January 1, 2025, implementation 
deadline. 

Executive Order 33 was introduced to address research highlighting the negative effects 
of cell phone use on students' learning, mental health, and safety. VDOE has also held 
public sessions to inform the community and provide opportunities for input regarding 
the order’s requirements.  

Discussion 
Since August, Poquoson City Public Schools has been actively reviewing VDOE guidelines 
and Executive Order 33 to ensure compliance, gathering input from stakeholders 
throughout the process. Our current policy does not meet the requirements set by the 
order, prompting us to draft a revised policy for School Board approval by the December 
board meeting. 

To develop this policy, we formed a Cell Phone Committee—including parents, students, 
staff, and administrators—that met in October and November. The committee carefully 
followed VDOE guidelines to draft the new policy, ensuring it aligns with state 
requirements. Additionally, our School Division attorneys reviewed the draft, and their 
suggested revisions have been incorporated. 

The recommended draft policy for approval is attached and is intended to replace the 
current Electronic Device and Cell Phone policy sections on pages 5 and 27 of our 
current Student Code of Conduct. This recommendation does not propose any revisions 
to the existing disciplinary guidelines for policy violations. While our discipline 
framework within the Student Code of Conduct remains applicable, the policy itself 
requires updates. Attached for your review are Governor Youngkin’s Executive Order 33, 



VDOE's Cell Phone-Free Education guidelines, our current Electronic Device/Cell Phone 
policy, and the recommended new draft policy. 
 
Recommendation: Approve the proposed revision to the Student Code of Conduct 
policy on electronic devices and cell phones, as prepared by the Cell Phone Committee, 
for advancement to the second reading. 
  
Attachment: Executive Order 33, VDOE Guidelines Cell Phone-Free Education, Current 
Student Code of Conduct Electronic Device/Cell Phone Policy, Draft Electronic 
Device/Cell Phone-Free Education Policy 
 
Reference: Executive Order 33, VDOE Guidelines Cell Phone-Free Education 



EXECUTIVE ORDER 33 







GUIDANCE FOR CELL PHONE FREE EDUCATION























































CURRENT POLICY



5 

The Virginia Department of Education considers students who are absent ten percent of the school year or 18 days to be 
considered chronically absent. A student is considered to be chronically absent if the 18 days are excused or unexcused. 
The Virginia school accreditation system includes chronic absenteeism as a school quality indicator which may impact a 
school’s and division’s accreditation rating.  
Make-Up Work 
When requesting make up work, a parent should give teachers 24 hour notice to have the child’s assignments prepared for 
take home work. At least one day will be allowed for make-up work for every day of excused absence. Failure on the part 
of the student to complete make up work on time will result in the student receiving a lowered grade on the assignment. 
Students may not be allowed to make up any daily work and instruction provided by teachers during unexcused absences 
or unexcused tardies. Students may be given credit for extended assignments with a due date that occurs during an 
unexcused absence; extended assignments include, but are not limited to, research papers, essays, book reports, projects, 
tests, quizzes, and semester exams. 

Bicycles 
The Poquoson City School Board permits but does not advocate the riding of bicycles to school by students. The riding of 
bicycles is only permitted if parents have provided written permission to the school. 

Cellular Phones and Other Mobile Devices 
Students at Poquoson Middle and Poquoson High may carry their cellular phones in a pocket or backpack, but to avoid 
disruption to the instructional process, all cellular phones must be turned off and not displayed unless the student is in a 
designated area or classroom in which they are permitted to use their cellular phone. Students may also leave their cellular 
phones in their lockers.  Students may not wear cellular phones outside clothing as an accessory. Certain instructional 
activities may occur during the school day that permit students to use their cellular phones. Cellular phones used as part of 
an instructional activity will be under the direct supervision of a teacher or staff member. 

Students at Poquoson Elementary School and Poquoson Primary School may not bring cellular phones to school or mobile-
connected devices, with the exception of smart watches, which must be kept in the backpack. Smart watches that are in 
the backpack shall be in silent mode or turned off while on school grounds during school hours, school activities during 
school hours, or the school bus. 

PCPS issues Chromebooks or iPads to students in grade K-12 for use during the school year; therefore, students do not 
need to bring laptops, tablets or other mobile devices to school. A mobile device is any device that can connect to the 
internet such as laptops, tablets, iPads, notebooks, eReaders, hand-held gaming devices, or PDAs. Students who have 
an instructional need for the use of mobile devices other than a cellular phones at school should speak with an 
administrator.  PCPS is not responsible for loss, damage, or theft of any cellular phone or mobile device brought to 
school.  

Any violations in the use of cellular phones or other mobile devices will result in disciplinary action in accordance with the 
PCPS Code of Student Conduct and the Acceptable Use Policy.  

Child Abuse 
Reference: School Board Policy 7-5.7 
Poquoson City Public Schools’ employees, in compliance with the Code of Virginia, Title 63.1, Chapter 12.1 Child Abuse 
and Neglect, shall report to the local department of social services, incidents of suspected child abuse and/or neglect.   

Clubs • Activities 
Reference:  School Board Policy 7-4.5
All school clubs and organizations are established to benefit students.  Some clubs and organizations may have 
prerequisites for membership.  If students are interested in seeking membership to a club or organization, they will need to 
see the advisor for more information. 











DRAFT CELL PHONE FREE POLICY



Electronic Devices and Cell Phone-Free Education Policy 

In accordance with the Governor’s Executive Order 33, to support a consistent and focused 

educational experience, students are permitted to use only Poquoson City Public School 

(PCPS) division-issued devices, such as Chromebooks, during operational hours for 

educational purposes. These devices are provided to enhance learning and give students 

access to a wide range of educational resources, ensuring they have the tools necessary to 

succeed in the classroom. As each student is equipped with a division-issued device, the use of 

any other electronic devices is not permitted during school hours.  

This policy helps maintain a controlled digital environment, minimizes distractions, and ensures 

all students have equitable access to learning tools. Students are expected to use their division-

issued devices responsibly and in accordance with the guidelines set forth by the division. 

Students who choose to bring personal devices to school do so at their own risk and must 

understand that the division, its schools, and its employees are not liable for loss, theft, damage, 

or any other issues related to these devices. Students will be responsible for securing their 

phone. School employees will not be responsible for providing storage locations during class 

time, nor will they be responsible for locating a missing device or addressing any damages that 

may occur.  

Students must use school-based communication tools and platforms (whether in the office, 

classroom, or other centralized location) to communicate needs with parents. Each school will 

have a protocol in place to address family-emergencies and other essential communication 

needs of students during school hours. 

Definitions 

“Away” means that the device should not be on a student’s person, including in pockets. 

“Bell-to-Bell” means from when the first bell rings at the start of the school day to begin 

instructional time until the dismissal bell rings at the end of the academic school day. This 

includes lunch and time in between class periods.  

“Cell Phone-Free Education” means the age-appropriate elimination or restriction of cell 

phones and other personal electronic communication devices in public schools.  

“Cell Phone” means a personal device capable of making calls, transmitting pictures or video, 

or sending or receiving messages through electronic means. The definition of cell phone 

includes non-smart phones, which are limited to making phone calls or sending text messages, 

a smart phone that encompasses these features, and other future personal electronic 

communication devices with similar characteristics.  

DRAFT



“Instructional time” means any structured or unstructured learning experience that occurs 

from when the first bell rings at the start of the school day until the dismissal bell rings at the end 

of the academic school day.  

 

“Personal Electronic Communication Device” means any personal device capable of 

connecting to a smartphone, the internet, a cellular or Wi-Fi network, or directly connects to 

another similar device. Personal electronic communication devices may include some wearable 

devices such as smart watches, as well as personal headphones, laptops, tablets, and other 

future personal electronic communication devices with the abovementioned characteristics. 

 

In the Elementary and Primary School (PreK-5), Cell Phone-Free Education policy states:  

 

1. Cell Phones and Personal Electronic Communication Devices will not be used by 

elementary or primary students within the school building or on school grounds.  

 

2. If a parent decides that an elementary student should bring a Cell Phone or Personal 

Electronic Communication Device to school, the device must be powered off and stored 

Away from the student and in their backpacks during the Bell-to-Bell school day.  

 

In the Middle School (6-8), Cell Phone-Free Education policy states: 

 

1. Middle school students shall not have a Cell Phone or Personal Electronic 

Communication Device during the Bell-to-Bell school day.  

2. If Cell Phones or Personal Electronic Communication Devices are brought to school, 

they must be powered off and stored Away from the student in the student’s assigned 

locker during the Bell-to-Bell school day.  

a. When students are on school sponsored trips during school hours, it is up to the 

discretion of school staff to allow Cell Phone and Personal Electronic Device 

usage.  

3.   Outside of the Bell-to-Bell Instructional Time, Cell Phones and Personal Electronic 

Communication Devices may be used on the middle school campus before and/or after 

school. 

 

In the High School (9-12), Cell Phone-Free Education policy states: 

 

1. High school students shall not have a Cell Phone or Personal Electronic Communication 

Device during the Bell-to-Bell school day.  

2. If cell phones or personal electronic communication devices are brought to school, they 

must be powered off and stored away from the student during the bell-to-bell school day.  

a. Students are expected to store their devices in bags, lockers, vehicles, or any 

other designated locations permitted by the school.  

b. When students are on school sponsored trips during school hours, it is up to the 

discretion of school staff to allow Cell Phone and Personal Electronic Device 

usage.  



3. Outside of the Bell-to-Bell Instructional Time, Cell Phones and Personal Electronic 

Communication Devices may be used on a high school campus before or after school. 

 

Exemptions to Cell Phone-Free Education Policy 

 

Exemptions will be made on an individualized basis, as determined by a student’s individualized 

health care plan, 504 plan, and IEP. Students with these exemptions may only access these 

devices for the purpose stated in their IHP, IEP or 504 plan.   

 

 



Poquoson City School Board 

Reading File Item Brief 

 
Reading File Item:  VIII-C 

 

Meeting Date:  November 19, 2024 

 

Subject:  Motion to approve the Superintendent’s request to City Council for use of FY24 

carryover funds. 

 

Background: 

At the close of Fiscal Year 2024, there was a balance of $7,872 that was retained by Schools for 

State Tech Grant match and excess funds totaling $2,725,569 in funds, primarily resulting from 

significant savings in operating costs due to unfilled vacancies throughout the year and 

conservative spending practices. According to Virginia state regulations, school divisions are not 

permitted to retain excess local funds, and instead, the locality may re-appropriate those funds. 

 

Discussion: 

The Superintendent is requesting that the City Council approve the following allocations of the 

FY24 carryover funds: 

 

1. Curriculum and Revisions: 

o $352,273 for curriculum updates and revisions to comply with new Virginia 

Department of Education (VDOE) standards. 

2. PHS HVAC Project: 

o $700,000 for additional costs related to the Poquoson High School HVAC project. 

3. New Job Coach Vehicle: 

o $35,000 for the purchase of a new vehicle for the job coach program. 

4. Weapon Detection Systems: 

o $60,000 for additional weapon detection systems, as recommended by the 

School's safety committee. 

5. GPS Software for School Buses: 

o $24,000 for the purchase and installation of GPS software for all school buses. 

6. Middle School Courtyard Renovations: 

o $20,000 for renovations to the Middle School interior courtyard. 

7. Capital Improvement Plan Projects: 

o $1,534,080 to fund various projects in the approved PCPS Capital Improvement 

Plan, including: 

▪ $50,000 for Elementary School Gym Floor Resurfacing. 

▪ $82,000 for Elementary School Exterior Painting. 

▪ $800,000 for Middle School Gym Roof Recover/Replacement. 

▪ $95,000 for a Phone System Upgrade (Schools and City). 

▪ $292,080 for Bus Replacements. 

▪ $215,000 for High School Parking Lot Resurfacing. 

Recommendation: 

Approve the Superintendent’s request to City Council for the use of the FY24 carryover funds as 

outlined in the discussion above. 

 

References: 

• School Board Policy 5-7.1 



Poquoson City School Board 
Reading File Item Brief 

 
 
Reading File Item: VIII.D 
 
Meeting Date:  November 19, 2024 
 
Subject: Motion to approve advancing the revisions to Policy 4-4.1, Food Service Management, 
to a second reading. These revisions will include the required elements currently missing, 
specifically addressing procedures for handling bad debt and prohibiting charges for staff or 
adult meals. 
 
Background 
Each year, Poquoson City Public Schools undergoes a review by the Virginia Department of 
Education's (VDOE) Office of School and Community Nutrition Programs to ensure our Food 
Services operations comply with state and federal guidelines. This year’s review, scheduled for 
January, has prompted the VDOE to identify specific policy changes needed before the official 
assessment. The two items that need to be addressed in PCPS policy are: how delinquent debt is 
managed when it becomes bad debt, and whether adults (including staff and other non-student 
adults) are permitted to charge meals. 
 
Discussion 
Poquoson City Public Schools is required to update its policy manual to include two items 
identified by the VDOE as missing. Attached are the proposed additions to Policy 4-4.1, Food 
Service Management, for your review and approval to proceed to a second reading. These 
revisions are necessary to meet VDOE requirements by specifying how PCPS addresses bad debt 
and manages meal charges for adults (staff and other non-student adults). We do not permit 
adults to charge meals, and any bad debt is resolved through donations or other eligible non-
federal funds. 
 
Recommendation: Approval of the recommended revisions to Policy 4-4.1 for advancement to a 
second reading. 
                                   
Attachment: Revisions to policy 4-4.1 Food Service Management 
 
Reference: PCPS policy 4-4.1 Food Service Management 
 
     



Recommended Revisions to Policy 4-4.1 Food Service Management 

POLICY 4-4.1 FOOD SERVICE PROGRAM  

Generally  

The Poquoson City School Board participates in the National School Breakfast and 

School Lunch Programs at all schools, and operates an a la carte meal program at the 

middle and high school levels. The division superintendent is authorized to develop and 

implement an efficient and effective food services system for the students and 

employees of the school division. The School Board shall establish and post on its 

website a web-based application for student participation in the National School 

Breakfast and School Lunch Program in addition to providing a paper-based application. 

Each public elementary or secondary school shall process each web-based or 

paperbased application for participation in the School Breakfast Program or the National 

School Lunch Program administered by the U.S. Department of Agriculture within six 

working days after the date of receipt of the completed application.  

Purposes  

The School Board recognizes the food service program as an integral part of the 

educational program. The food service program shall provide a practical form of 

education in nutrition and sanitation. It shall assist in safeguarding the health and well-

being of students and aid in the development of good food habits. The food service 

program shall provide nutritional lunches on a daily basis and shall be available to all 

students, adult staff members and employees as required by law.  

Financial Operation  

The food service program shall be operated on a nonprofit, self-supporting basis with 

lunches being furnished to students and school personnel at a reasonable charge. The 

school lunch program shall be financed by federal and state funds, local funds and 

monies received from students, adult staff members and employees. From time to time 

the division superintendent shall report to the School Board on the financial status of the 

school division’s food service operations.  

Lunchroom Standards  

School food service operations shall comply with all applicable standards and 

requirements of the Virginia Department of Education and the state and local health 

departments.  

National School Lunch and Breakfast Programs  



All school food service operations participating in the National School Lunch and 

Breakfast Programs shall function in accordance with all applicable laws and 

regulations. 

 Meal Charges  

School board employees shall direct any communication relating to a school meal debt 

to the student's parent. Communication may be made by a letter addressed to the 

parent to be sent home with the student. No school board employee shall require a 

student who cannot pay for a meal at school or who owes a school meal debt to throw 

away or discard a meal after it has been served to him, do chores or other work to pay 

for such meals or wear a wristband or hand stamp. The School Board shall not file a 

lawsuit against a student or the student’s parent because the student cannot pay for a 

meal at school or owes a school meal debt. Neither the School Board nor any school 

board employee shall deny a student the opportunity to participate in any extracurricular 

school activity because the student cannot pay for a meal at school or owes a school 

meal debt. Adults (non-students) are not permitted to charge meals.  

Reimbursement for Bad Debt 

Bad debt refers to delinquent debt considered uncollectible, which must be written off as 

an operating loss. Within the School Nutrition program, bad debt must be offset with 

non-federal funds. 

1. At year-end, the Assistant Superintendent for Operations and the Executive 

Director of Finance will review delinquent Food Services accounts to determine if 

they should be classified as bad debt. 

2. The division will first seek to cover bad debt through available donations. Any 

remaining balance, once donations are exhausted, will be covered by other 

appropriate non-federal funds. 

School meals; availability to students  

The School Board shall require each public elementary and secondary school in the 

division to participate in the federal National School Lunch Program and the federal 

School Breakfast Program administered by the U.S. Department of Agriculture and to 

make lunch and breakfast available pursuant to such programs to any student who 

requests such a meal, regardless of whether such student has the money to pay for the 

meal or owes money for meals previously provided, unless the student's parent has 

provided written permission to the school board to withhold such a meal from the 

student. Nothing in this policy limits the ability of the School Board to collect payment for 

meals provided under the Programs listed herein, provided however, that it shall not 

utilize a nongovernmental third-party debt collector to collect on such a debt. The 



School Board shall ensure that: (i) at any back to school night event in the local school 

division to which the parents of enrolled students are invited, any such parent in 

attendance receives prominent notification of and access, in paper or electronic form, or 

both, to information about application and eligibility for free or reduced price meals for 

student and a fillable free or reduced price meals application that may be completed 

and submitted on site; and (ii) a fillable free or reduced priced meals application is sent 

home with each student enrolled in a public elementary or secondary school in the 

school division at the beginning of each school year or, in the case of any student who 

enrolls after the beginning of the school year, as soon as practicable after enrollment.  

LEGAL REFERENCE: Code of Virginia, 1950, as amended, §§22.1-24, 22.1-70, 22.1-

78, 22.1- 79, 22.1-79.7, 22.1-79.7:1, 22.1-89.1, 22.1-115, 22.1-207.3; Virginia Board of 

Education Regulations Governing School Lunch – Sale of Food Items, 8 VAC 20-290-

10, et. seq, and Governing School Breakfast Programs, 8 VAC 20-580-10, et. seq.; 

National School Lunch Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §§1751-1760; Child Nutrition Act of 

1966, P.L. 89-612, 80 STAT 885, as amended. 


	Agenda-Final
	AGENDA Regular Meeting November 2024
	AGENDA Closed Session November 19 2024

	VII-A Financial Reports
	VII-A1  Bud vs Act_Chart_24-25
	VII-A2 YEAR TO DATE 24-25
	VII-A3 October 2024 Expenditure
	VII-A4 October 2024 Revenue

	VII-B Agenda Item November 2024 SB Meeting
	VII-C Personnel Action_Current Nov 24
	VII-D Minutes-Regular Meeting October 2024
	A motion was made by Mr. DuBose to pull item VII. C. from the consent agenda and voted on separately.

	VIII-A Reading File Amend Budget
	VIII-B-1 Reading File for SB Meet. Electronic Device Cell Phone Policy_November 2024
	Background
	Discussion
	Blank Page

	VIII-B-2 Executive Order-33-2024-Cell Phone Free
	Untitled
	Blank Page

	VIII-B-3 Guidance for Cell Phone Free Education
	Blank Page

	VIII-B-4 Current Policy
	Blank Page

	VIII-B-5 PCPS Cell Phone Policy Draft
	Blank Page

	VIII-C Reading File CO Request November 2024 updated 11.14.24
	VIII-D-1 Reading File for SB Meeting_Rivisions to Food Services Policy_November 19 2024
	Background
	Discussion

	VIII-D-2 Recommended Revisions to Policy 4-4.1 Food Service Management



